UNITED NATIONS

ECONOMIC
AND
SOCIAL COUNCIL

T I T T T YY)

Distr.
GEVERAL

E/AC.L2/SR.2
23 Marclh 1955

ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

COMMITTEE ON THE ENFCORCIMENT OF INTERNATICNAL ARBITRAL AWARDS

First Session

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE SECOND MERTING

Held at Headquarters, Lew York,

on Wednesday, 2 March 1955, at 10.45 a.m.

CCNTENTS

Consideration of the question of the enforcement of international

arbicral avards, und, in particular, of the Preliminary Draft
Convention on the Enforcement of International Arbitral aAverde
prepared by the Internationsl Chamber of Commerce (E/C.2/373 ard Add.l,

B/AC.42/1 and E/AC.42/2)(continued)

55-07221




E/AC.42/SR.2
English
Page 2

Chai-man:

Memi.ers:

Mr. LCCMES Australia

Mr. NISOT Bxlgium

Mr. JRUJILLO Ecuador

Mi-. MEHTA India

Mr. DENNEMARK Sveden

Mr. NIKOLAEV Union of Soviet Soucialist Republics
Mcr. WORTLEY Cuited Kingdem of Great Britein and

Northecrn Ireland

Representative of a specialized egency:

Mr. WILLIAMS International Monetary Fund

Reyresentatives of non-govermental organizations:

Pategory A:

Mr. ROSENTHAL International Chamber of Ccmmerce

Category B and Register:

Secretariat:

Mr. KOPPERS Ioternational lLaw Association

Mr. SCHACHTER Iirector, General Legal Division
Mr. CONTINI Secretary of the Ccumittee




B/An.h2/gR. 2
Fnglien
Page 3

CONSIDERATION OF THE QUESTION OF THE ENFORCEMENT OF INTERNATIONAL ARBITRAL AWARDS
AND, IN PARTICULAR, OF THE PRELIMINARY LRAFT CONVENTICN ON THE ENFORCEMENT OF
INTERNATIONAL ARBITRAL AVARDS FREFARED BY THE INTLRNATIONAL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
(E/C.2/375 and Add.1, E/AC.42/1 end E/AC.42/2)(continuzd)

Mr. NIKOLAEV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said that his
delegation agreed that the satisfactory solution of the gquestion before the
Committee would facilitete the enforcement of arbitral awards relating to disputes
arising in international commerce and so would promote the development of
international trade. It also agreed that the preliminary draft convention
prepared by the International Chamber of Ccmmerce could be accepted as the basis
for discussion.

With respect to that draft, he agreed with the Belgian representative that
the title "Conveniion on the Enforcement of International Arbitral Awards” was
hardly appropriate. Ths proposed conventicn was to deal with the enforcement
in one country of arbitral ewards made in another, and it seemed to him that the
title of the Convention cn the Execution of Foreign Arbitiral Awards (1927) would
meet the point made by the represectative of Belgium and should be retaired.

The implication in article I tkat the convention would apply mot only to

arbitral awvards in commnercial disputes but also generally to those made in disputes

Involving legal relatiomshivs crising on the territories of different States was
not in conformity with the purposes of the convention. The applicaticn of the
convention should be limited to the enforcement of srbitral awards in disputes
arising out of ccmmercial dealings, and any provision suggesting that it had a
larger scope should therefore not be included.

In the Soviet Union, the Foreign Trade Arbitral Comuission and the Maritime
Arvitral Commission were permanent arbitral bodies established in 1932 and 1930
respectively in the All-Union Chamber of Commerce. The speaker descrited the
composition and functions of the two cormissions, and observed that they orersted
on principles confirmed by the Government of the USSR and according to rules ot
procedure confirmed bty the Presidium of the All-Union Chamber of Commerce, ard
always gave the reasons for decisions in detail. Over & period of more than
twenty years the Commissions hod settled disputes involving institutiops and

R




E/AC.42/SR.2
English
Page 4

(Mr. Nikolaev, USSR)

firms of vericus countries, including the United Kingdem, Belgium, Egypt, Sweden,
the United States of America, France, the Netherlands, Poland, Bulgdria, Germany,
Afghanistan, Greece, Iran, Italy, Canada, Mongolia, Nurway, Turkey and Switzerland.

The USSR delegotion took it that article I of the draft convention wouid
apply both to awards made by arvitrators appointed to settle particular disputes
and to those made by permanent arbiiral bodies, but it would be advisable to make
that point explicit in the text.

The USSR had concluded bilateral agreemeats on the enforcement of arbitral
awards with Poland, Romania, Hungary, Czechoslovakia, Bulgeria, Norway, Sweden,
Finlend and Switzerland. Such agreements took the form of separate articles in
USSR cormmercial treaties with those countries. Under those agreements the
contracting parties assumed the obligation to enforce arbitiral awords made in
conmercial disputes between persons or institutions of the contracting parties ir
such arbitration was stipulated in the particular transaction or in a separate
agreement governing the particular transaction.

He cited as an exampie the Exchange of Goods and Payrents Agreement of
7 September 19LO between the USSR and Sweden, article 14 of which provided for
possible arbitral settlement <f commercial disputes between the USSR trade
delegation in Sweden or Soviet eccnomic orgasizations, on the one hand, and
Swedish institutiors, firms or persoas, on the other. Under article 15, the
parties vere bound to recognize as valid, oad to enforce, arbitral awards zpade in
such disputes. Enforcement could not be refused except on certain specified
grounds. Article 15 further provided for similar enforcement of arbitral awards
relating to transactioas outside the scope of the Agreement if the awards were
tased on an arbitration agreement or clause that was valid under the laws of the
couniry vnere the arbitratica was to take place.

In view of thz foregoing, the draft chould provide that nothing in the
convention could affect the operation of bilateral agreements of the contracting

af arhitrel awards.

e dn dhn anfrraawant
o creecnenttc

His delegation had submitted to the Secretary of the (cimittee written

arendrents along the lines indicated.




~/AC 2 on 2

TiovaT e e
—bn e

Fape 5

Mr. WORTV.EY (United Kingdom) said that he would limit his preliminary
remarks to two points that had been raised in the Lord Chancellcrt's Committee
when it had exemined the ICC draft. In England, as in most countries, arbitration
meant a procedure for settling disputes eccording to law. In some countries,

however, it embraced such procedures as amiable composition. The question was

whether the ICC draft was concerned exclusively with arbitration as such or whether
it extended to forms of comciliation. That should be clarified.

The second point releted to the limitation of the effect of the draft
convention to commercial disputes. As corron law countries had no separate
commercial code and no statutory dz=finition of the person described in French
as commarcant, difficulties might arise in the application of the convention.

The CIAIRMAN noted the Belgian representativets criticism of the
exlsting title of the draft convention, and the USSR representative's suggestion
that the title of the Convention of 1927 wculd be prefersble.

Mr. NISOT (Belgium) said that the title should speak of "recognition
and enforcement” rather then of "enforcement” alone. As there seemed to be no ]
objection to the ideas to be included in the title, he proposed that the exact .
wording should be left until the Committee had ccmpieted its work om the text of _
the draft convention. : ]

It was so decided. '

The CHAIRMAN invited the Committee, before discussing the text of the
draft convention, to consider several preliminary points. The first was a
matter raised by the United Kingdcm representative: vwhether the word "arbitration”

should apply only to the arbltral settlerment of disputes according to law or
should also include conciliation.

Mr. MEHTA (India) remarked that conciliation was a seperate meithod,
applicable largely to labour disputes, and that the draft convention should Qdeal
only with arbitration in the strict sense, in other words, the settlement of
disputes by arbitrators according to law.




E/A7.b2/SR.2
English
Poge 6

Me. TRUJTLLO (Ecuador) said that in Reuedor, as in most Latin Arerican
countries the law allowed the parties to choose between arbitration according to

lav and arbitration ex sequo et bono. 1f the draft conveation were to apply to

all disputes and their settlement, it should cover boih forums of arvitration; but
if it was decided that it should dezl excliusively with ccmnercial disputes,

provisicn should te made for arbitraticn cx acqio et boro only vaich offered

greater opportunities of reconciling conslicting naticnal laws.

Mr. NISOT (Belgium) pointed owt thLot, under the draft conventicn, in
countries in which arbitration ex scque et beno was recoznized by law, the pariies

would be free to choose that form of &erbitration. He failed to see why the
United Kingdom representative shoulé object to a prevision giving the parties tinat
ietitude, particularly since the same choice was ovfered by the 1927 Couvention,
which had teen ratified by the United Kingdom. '

Mr. WORTLEY (United Kinzdom) replied that, whereas in other countries
commercial disputes were often settled by the method of amiable composition,
ir the United Kingdom settleme..cs had to be according to law, so that a court

could be applied to for redress of any error of law or misconduct in the arbitration
proceedings. In order to make sure that countries with cifrerent legal systems
understood exactly to what they would be commitceing themselves, the draft

convention should stipulate clearly whether it applied to only ome of the forms of

arbitration mentioned or offered a choice between the two.

Mr. DEFNEMARK (Swelen) thought that, under the draft convertior,
artitrators should te permitted to ugse the method of ex @equo et bono, precisely

as they were under the 1927 Convention. 1o tie twenty-cight years of its
existence, that Convention had not, to his knowledge, given rise to any difficulty

in any of the sigmatory countries, including his own.

Mr. WIZSOT (Beljium) said that, 1f tie United Kinzd:m had any difficulty

in enforcing an arbvitrzl avard made ex aequd et boro, it could refuse to entorce

it under arti:le IV (a) of the drafc convention cn the rrounds that to do so would

be contrary to public rclicy. A similar provisicn existed in tie 1027 Convertlon.




E/AC.42/3R.2
Euz.i3h
Fege 7

lr. UDRTIEY (United Kingdom) replied that "public policy” was a much
more rigld and morz narrowly circumscribed concept tihon ordre public, so that the
provision in question wouid not coanstitute an avenve of escape for the Cummonwealth
countries as it would for most countries of the continent of Europe. Morecover,
in the 1927 Convention the clause had been used in a different context.

The CHATRMAN, speaking as the representetlve of Australia, supported

that view,

Mr. NISOT (Belgium) failed to sec why the United Kingdom should refuse
to accept a system similar to that provided for in a Convention by which it was
8till bcound.

Mr. DENNEMARK (Sweden) remarked that under the Arbitration Act, 1950,
foreign awards were enforceable in the United Kingdom. He wondered whezther the
United Kingdom would refuse, for example, to enforce ap avard made according to
French law by an arbitrator vho had to some extent ruled ex aequo et bono.

Mr. WORTLEY (United Kingdcm) replied that & finel award made in
accordance with the law of another ccuntry would be enforced in the United Kinzdom.
Difficulty would arise only it the award was not based on the law of any country,
since the institution of amiable composition did not exist in the United Kingdom.
Under the draft convention as it stood, the United Kingdom might find itself having
to enforce decisions which were rot arbitral awards inm the strict sense but

compromises achieved without reference t- eny particular system of law and without
Previous notification to the parties that that metrcd would be used. That would
be unacceptable, beccuse the United Kingdem felt that it should be possible to
upset an awaéd if 1t had been made in violation of a point of law. His remarks
obviously did not apply to ewards voluntarily accepted by both parties, since in
that case the question of enforcement did not arise.

The CHAIRMAN said that the Ccmmittee could clarify the matier further
in the course of its discussion of the text of the draft -onvention. He invited

members to consider vhether the draft conventioa should apply to commercial disputes

only.

|

'
T
il il




E/AC.42/5R.2
Kuplish
Page 8

br. WOETIZY (Uniced Kingdom) thought that another questica of principle

wes the ccope of the propogsed convention. The ICC dra’t extended to arbitral
awards affecting persons who were not naticnals of the States parties to the
convention. Tne Convention of 1927,on the other hand, was governcd by the
principle of reciproecity.

As to the problem involved in the limitation of the convention to awards
in ccumerclal disputes, it had been solved in the 1927 Convention by the inclusion
of a permicsive clause allowing reservaticns limitlng its apulication to commercial

disputes.

M. NIKOIAEV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) referred to his
opening statement and said tiat his delegaticn maintained its view in favour of

limiting the opecration of the convontion to cemrercial disputes.

Mr, DFNNEMARK (Sweden) saw no nesd for the limitation, which migat
cause difficulties in countries having no commercial ccde., In only a few

countries were commergants and cormercial disputes governed by special legiclation.
The best solution would be to follow the example of the 1923 Protocol, which
provided in the second senten:e of its parezraph 1 that each contracting State
reserved the right to limit its obligation to contracts considered as commercial
under its national law.

Mr. NISOT (Belgium) said that his delegation would prefer the operation
of the proposed conventiocn to be limited to ccmmercial disputes, but if the idea
14 not have the support of the mejority, it could accept the Swedish proposal.

Mr. NIKOLAEV (Union cf Soviet Jocialist Republics) requested the

submission oi the 3wedish proposal in writing before eny decision in principle was

taken.

The CHAIRMAN invited ccmments on the Ipdian representative'’s suggestion

that an arnex to the draft ccnvention should contaln a standard eet of riles
governing arbitral procedure which would be anplicable in tiie abéence of agreement

between the parties.




E/AC.42/SR.2
Fr:)i-h
Fege v

Mr. NISOT (Belgium) said it was premature to consider a standard set
of rules though the Econcmlc and Social Council might be informed that it would
be desirable to draft such rules. In the meantime, it should draft tie new
convention on the basis of the existing rules of orbitral procedure.

The CHAIRMAN suggested that the question of stondard rules of arbitral
rrocedure should be mentioned in the Committee's renort to the Economic and Social

Council.

Mr. MEHTA (India) c~cepted the suggestion.
It vas so apreed.

The CHATRMAN invited the Committee to coasider vhether the principle
of yeciprocity, which was a feature of the 1927 Convention, should be maintained
in the new draft convention..

M-, DENNEMARX (Sweden) cbserved that the ebserce of a reciprocity clause
misht cause some difficulty, although not in the case of Sweden which enforced
every foreign arbitral eward, irrespective oi whether the State in which it wes
mede ves a party to the 1027 Convention. The same latitude should be permitted
in the draft convention.

i

i

i
|

Mr. NISOT (Belgium) said that the Belgian practice was similar to the
Swedish. A general clause might, however, be included in the draft convention
vhich would permit a Govermment to reserve its right not to enforce an arbitral
sward made in a State not party to the convention.

Mr. DENNEMARK (Sweden) felt that a definition of the term "foreign
arbitral avard” was essential. In Swedish law, the term meant an award made
in a foreign country, irrespective of whether the proceedings leading to the
awvard were conducted there.




E'I’flc . )+2,"SR . 2
BErglish
Page 10

Mr. WORTLEY (United Kingdom) said tkat in bis countyy the point bad
been covered in the Arbitration Act, 1950, by a provision to the effect that a
forcign arbitral awerd was an avard not goverrned by the laws of England (section
4o (b); see also section 35).

Mr. TENNEMARK (Sweden) oelieved the teru shiould be defined. The

definition accepted in Sweden had not given rise to any difficulty over a perind

of tweuty-five years. It was no more open to eriticism then any cther definition.

The CTATRMAN observed that the Swedish suggestion did not cover the

question of reciprocity.

Mr. DENNEMARK (sweden) said be supported the Belgian representative's

suggestion for a general reservation clause.

Mr. NIXOLAEV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said that any

definition of the term "foreign arbitral award" would involve a measure of risk.

The absence of such a definition had nct given rise to any difficulty in the
application of tke 1927 Convention. Hence, a definition in the draft convention

was unnecessary.

Mr. DENNEMARK (Sweden) said tkat the term was indirectly defined in
article 1 of the 1927 Convention which stated: "...provided that tke said award
has been made in a territory of one of the High Contracting Parties to which the

present Convention applies and between persons who are subject to tke jurisdiction
of one of the High Contracting Parties..."” He agreed with the Belgian
representative that the words "and between persons who are subject to tae
jurisdiction of one fo the High Contracting Parties" stould not be retained.

The CHAIRMAN noted that, wnile there was general agreexent on the

questiocn of reciprocity, there seemed to be some objection to a defirition of the

term "foreign arbitral award". The matter mignt be taken up again later.

Tke weetirg rese at 1 p.m.

e d U e



